BIDDER:	



COOK COUNTY GOVERNMENT

Office of the Chief Procurement Officer

PURCHASES (<\$25,000) CONTRACT FOR «PICKLIST:CONTRACT TYPE:SERVICE~SUPPLY:»

DOCUMENT NO. «REFERENCE:IM_MASTER:CC_DOCUMENT_NUMBER:DOCU» (PURCHASE ORDER NO. XXXXXXXXXXXXXX)

«REFERENCE:IM_MASTER:CC_DESCRIPTION:CC_DE» FOR
«REFERENCE:IM_MASTER:CC_LEAD_DEPARTMENT:C»

PRE-BID MEETING:

DATE: [Enter Date]
TIME: [Enter Time]
LOCATION: [Enter Location]

BIDS TO BE EXECUTED IN TRIPLICATE

BID OPENING WILL BE ON

DATE(I.E. MONDAY, MARCH 16, 2015) AT 10:00 A.M. CENTRAL STANDARD TIME

LATE BIDS WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED

DELIVER BIDS TO 118 N. CLARK ST., ROOM 1018, CHICAGO, IL 60602

Questions regarding this Bid should be directed to: «PROMPT:SPECIFICATION ENGINEER (BUYER) PH» EMAIL: «PROMPT:SPECIFICATION ENGINEER (BUYER) E-»

Toni Preckwinkle Cook County Board President **Shannon E. Andrews Chief Procurement Officer**

TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>Section</u>		<u>Page</u>
Instructions to Bio	dders	3
General Conditio	ns	9
Special Condition	ns	13
Specifications		15
Site Inspection C	ertificate	17
Proposal		18
Contract Execution	on Page	20
Exhibits		Page
Exhibit I:	Electronic Payables Program Form	19

Fillable PDF Links for all Exhibits Available at: https://www.cookcountyil.gov/service/doing-business-cookcountyil.gov/service/doing-

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS INDEX

<u>Section</u>	Subject	<u>Page</u>
IB-01	Definitions	4
IB-02	Site Inspection Certificate	5
IB-03	Exceptions and Addendum	5
IB-04	Bidder Representations and Warranties	5
IB-05	Submission of Bid Proposals	5
IB-06	Bid Proposals to Conform to Contract Documents	5
IB-07	Competency of Bidder	5
IB-08	Local Business Preference	6
IB-09	Consideration of Bid Proposals	6
IB-10	Withdrawal of Bid Proposals	6
IB-11	Notice of Award	6
IB-12	Bid Disputes	6
IB-13	Prices Firm	6
IB-14	Cash Billing Discounts	7
IB-15	Catalogs	7
IB-16	Authorized Dealer/Distributor	7
IB-17	Trade Names	7
IB-18	Samples	7
IB-19	Notices	7
IB-20	Compliance with Laws - Public Contracts	8
IB-21	Cook County Recycled Product Procurement Policy	8
IB-22	Estimated Quantities	8

CONTRACT NO. «reference:IM_MASTER:document_number:cc_p» INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

IB-01 DEFINITIONS

- A. BIDDER shall mean any Person who submits a Bid.
- **B. BID COVER PAGE** shall mean the general description of the required services, goods, equipment, or supplies, the contact information of the assigned Contract Negotiator or Specification Engineer in the Office of the Chief Procurement Officer, and shall include the date, time and place for both the submission of Bid Proposals and the opening of the Bid Proposals.
- **C. BID or BID PROPOSAL** shall mean a response to the Bid Notice containing all Bid Documents and any other documents or information the Bidder is required to provide.
- D. BID DOCUMENTS means the documents, specifications, forms and other information necessary and required for a Bid.
- **E. BID NOTICE** means the notice from the CPO regarding a Procurement which shall include: a general description of the Procurement; information necessary to obtain the Bid Documents; and the date, time and place for both the submission of Bids and the opening of the Bids.
- F. CONTRACT shall mean any written document to make Procurements by or on behalf of Cook County.
- **G. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS** shall mean collectively the Bid Cover Page, Bid Notice, Bid Documents, and any other document required by the Chief Procurement Officer. The above documents shall be considered as one integrated document setting forth the obligations of the parties.
- H. CONTRACTOR shall mean the Person that enters into a Contract with the County.
- I. COUNTY shall mean the County of Cook, a body politic and corporate of the State of Illinois.
- J. DIRECTOR shall mean the person or persons authorized by the County to act in connection with this Contract. Such authorization shall not include any power to change the scope of the Contract or to obligate the County to pay additional sums beyond the amount of the Contract awarded by the Cook County Board of Commissioners or the Chief Procurement Officer.
- K. CHIEF PROCUREMENT OFFICER or CPO shall mean the Chief Procurement Officer of the County of Cook whose duties and responsibilities are more particularly described in the Cook County Procurement Code, Chapter 34, Article IV, Division I.
- L. OCPO shall mean the Office of the Chief Procurement Officer of Cook County.
- **M. PERSON** shall mean any individual, corporation, partnership, Joint Venture, trust association, Limited Liability Company, sole proprietorship or legal entity.
- N. PROCUREMENT shall mean obtaining supplies, equipment, goods or services of any kind.
- **O. SPECIFICATIONS** shall mean the description of the services, work, goods, equipment, personnel, volume and use statistics and all requirements for the scope of work set forth in the Contract Documents.
- P. USING AGENCY shall mean the departments or agencies within Cook County government including elected officials.

IB-02 SITE INSPECTION CERTIFICATE

The Bidder shall inspect the job-site to become familiar with the conditions related to the work or services and the requirements set forth in the Bid Documents. Failure of the Bidder to visit the Site shall not relieve or alter the Bidder's responsibility for completing the work or services as required by the Contract Documents.

When required as mandatory in the Contract Documents, the Bidder shall visit the job-site and shall carefully examine and become familiar with all conditions which may in any way affect the performance of the Contract and shall submit certification of such inspection along with the Bid Proposal. The dates and conditions of the site inspection are determined by the County. If the Contract Documents provide that inspection of the site is mandatory, a Bidder's failure to attend all of the required site inspections shall render the Bid Proposal non-responsive.

IB-03 EXCEPTIONS AND ADDENDUM

The County will not provide oral answers to questions concerning Bid Documents before or subsequent to the award of a Contract. If an interpretation or clarification of the Bid Document is desired by the Bidder or if the Bidder intends to request a deviation to the Specifications, the Bidder shall submit questions or request for the deviation to the Specifications to the Chief Procurement Officer prior to the date for inquiries set forth in the Special Conditions. The Chief Procurement Officer will answer questions or requests for deviations to the Specifications by issuing an Addendum which shall be available to all Bidders submitting a Bid Proposal. If no Addendum is issued by the Chief Procurement Officer, then such deviation or exception to the Specification shall be deemed rejected. The Chief Procurement Officer shall reject any Bid containing deviations or exceptions to the Specifications not previously accepted through a written Addendum. Bidder shall acknowledge receipt of each Addendum issued in the space provided on the proposal form. The Bidder's failure to acknowledge in writing any issued addenda may result in the CPO finding the Bid non-responsive and rejecting the Bid. The OCPO shall not allow any Bidder to acknowledge any such addenda, in writing or orally, after the Bid Opening.

All written requests for clarifications, deviations or exceptions shall be addressed to the Specification Engineer or Contract Negotiator listed on the Bid Cover Page:

If the apparent lowest Bidder takes exceptions or deviations to the General Conditions, which are submitted with the Bid, the CPO shall reject the Bid as non-responsive in the event that the Chief Procurement Officer, in his or her sole opinion, determines such exceptions or deviations to be material.

IB-04 BIDDER REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

The submission of a Bid shall constitute a representation and warranty that: (i) Bidder has carefully and thoroughly reviewed the Contract Documents and has found them complete and free from ambiguities and sufficient to describe the required goods, equipment, supplies or services; (ii) Bidder and all laborers, employees or subconbtractors it intends to use in the performance of this Contract are skilled and experienced in the type of work or services called for by the Contract Documents; and (iii) neither the Bidder nor any of its employees, agents, suppliers or subcontractors have relied on any verbal representations from the County, or any of the County's employees, agents, or consultants, in preparing the Bid.

IB-05 SUBMISSION OF BID PROPOSALS

All Bidders shall submit the bound copy of the Bid in a sealed envelope and shall cause the Bid to be delivered to The Office of the Chief Procurement Officer, Room 1018, County Building, 118 North Clark Street, Chicago, Illinois 60602 by the date and hour for the Bid Opening as shown in the Bid. The sealed envelope submitted by the Bidder shall have the Bid label, set forth herein, or shall have the following information on the face of the envelope: Bidder's name, address, subject matter of Bid, Bid or Contract number, advertised date of Bid Opening and the hour designated for Bid Opening as shown in the Contract Documents.

IB-06 BID PROPOSALS TO CONFORM TO BID DOCUMENTS

The County will not entertain or consider any Bids: (i) received after the exact time specified in the Bid; (ii) not accompanied by the required bid deposit; or (iii) in any other way failing to comply fully with the conditions stated in the Bid.

IB-07 COMPETENCY OF BIDDER

No Contract shall be awarded to a Bidder that is in arrears or is in default to the County upon any debt or Contract, or that is a defaulter, as surety or otherwise upon any obligation to said County, or has failed to perform faithfully any previous contract with the County.

IB-08 LOCAL BUSINESS PREFERENCE

The Chief Procurement Officer shall, for all Procurements funded solely with County dollars by competitive sealed bidding, accept the lowest bid price or lowest evaluated bid price from a responsive or responsible local business, provided that the Bid does not exceed the lowest bid price or lowest evaluated bid price from a responsive and responsible non-local business by more than five percent (5%).

"Local business" shall mean a Person, including a foreign corporation authorized to transact business in Illinois, having a bona fide establishment located within the County at which it is transacting business on the date when a Bid is submitted to the County, and which employs the majority of its regular, full-time work force within the County. A Joint Venture shall constitute a Local Business if one or more Persons that qualify as a "Local Business" hold interests totaling over 50 percent in the Joint Venture, even if the Joint Venture does not, at the time of the Bid submittal, have such a bona fide establishment within the County.

IB-09 CONSIDERATION OF BID PROPOSALS

The County reserves the right to reject or accept any or all Bid Proposals, to extend the bidding period, to waive technicalities in the Bid and/or to withdraw or cancel the Bid or to issue a new Bid, i.e., "rebid" prior to award of the Contract.

After Bid Proposals are opened and read aloud, they will be evaluated based on the price, conformance with Specifications, the responsibility of the various Bidders taking into consideration factors including, but not limited to, those noted in IB-09, IB-10 and responsiveness to the County's Minority and Female Owned Business Ordinance.

The Chief Procurement Officer reserves the right to make corrections, after receiving the Bids, to any clerical error apparent on the face of the Bid, including but not limited to obviously incorrect units or misplaced decimal points, or arithmetic errors. In the event that comparison of the Bidder's "Unit Price" and "Total Price" submitted for any line items reveals a calculation error, the Unit Price will prevail.

The Chief Procurement Officer reserves the right to reject any Bid that, in his or her discretion and authority is deemed materially unbalanced.

IB-10 WITHDRAWAL OF BID PROPOSALS

Bidders may withdraw their Bid Proposals at any time prior to the time specified in the Bid as the date and hour set for the Bid Opening. However, no Bidder shall withdraw, cancel or modify its Bid Proposal for a period of ninety (90) calendar days after said advertised Bid Opening.

IB-11 NOTICE OF AWARD

The Chief Procurement Officer shall notify the successful Bidder, in writing, of award of the Contract by the County within ninety (90) days from the Bid Opening date. Upon receipt of the Notice of Award, the Contractor shall promptly secure, execute and deliver to the Chief Procurement Officer any documents required herein.

IB-12 BID DISPUTES

Section 34-136 of the Cook County Procurement Code permits Bidders to file protests. Any Bidder who reasonably believes that the recommended Bidder is not the lowest Responsive and Responsible Bidder, or has a complaint about the bid process, may submit a bid protest, in writing, and directed to the CPO, within three business days after the date upon which the CPO posts the recommended Bid for award or execution on the County's website. The bid protest must specify why the protester believes the recommended Bidder is not the lowest Responsive and Responsible Bidder, or why the protestor believes the bid procedure was unfair, including a statement of how the alleged unfairness prejudiced the protesting Bidder and the action requested of the CPO. A bid protest based on an issue which could have been clarified through a request for clarification or information pursuant to Section 34-136(d), and IB-05, Communications with the County regarding competitive bidding process, will not be considered if the protesting Bidder failed to make such request. When a bid protest has been submitted, no further action shall be taken on the Procurement until the CPO makes a decision concerning the bid protest, unless the Using Agency responds in writing and sufficiently demonstrates that (i) the item to be procured is urgently required and (ii) failure to make the award promptly will unduly delay delivery or performance or cause other undue harm.

The CPO shall issue a written decision on the bid protest to the protesting Bidder and to any other Bidder affected by such decision as soon as reasonably practicable. If the bid protest is upheld based on a lack of fairness in the bid procedure, the CPO shall re-bid the procurement. If the CPO determines that the recommended Bidder was not Responsive and Responsible, that Bidder shall be disqualified and the CPO may either recommend the lowest Responsive and Responsible Bidder or re-bid. Any CPO decision concerning bid protests shall be final.

IR-13 PRICES FIRM

All prices quoted in the Bid Proposal shall be firm and will not be subject to increase during the term of the Contract, except as otherwise provided in these Contract Documents.

IB-14 CASH BILLING DISCOUNTS

Cash billing or percentage discounts for payment will not be considered in evaluating Bid Proposals.

IB-15 CATALOGS

Each Bidder shall submit in TRIPLICATE, where necessary or when requested catalogs, descriptive literature, and detailed drawings, fully detailing features, designs, construction, appointment and finishes not covered in the Specifications but necessary to fully describe the goods, equipment, supplies or services.

IB-16 AUTHORIZED DEALER/DISTRIBUTOR

For goods, equipment and supplies, the Bidder must be one of the following: (i) the manufacturer; (ii) an authorized dealer/distributor; or (iii) able to promptly secure the necessary genuine parts, assemblies and/or accessories as supplied by the original equipment manufacturer (O.E.M.), along with any necessary schematics or drawings to fulfill the contractual obligations. With respect to the purchase of vehicles, or services related to vehicles, the Specifications or Special Conditions may require that the Bidder be an authorized dealership of the manufacturer. The Bidder must be able to furnish original product warranty and manufacturer's related services such as product information, product re-call notices, etc. Proof of ability to transfer product warranty to the County is to be submitted with the Bid Proposal.

IB-17 TRADE NAMES

In cases where an item is identified by a manufacturer's name, brand name, trade name, catalog number, or reference, it is understood that the Bidder proposes to furnish the item identified and does not propose to furnish an alternate but equivalent item, unless the Bidder has proposed and the County has accepted the alternate but equivalent item.

Unless the Bid states that no substitute shall be allowed, the reference to a manufacturer's name, brand name, trade name, catalog number, or reference is intended to be descriptive and not restrictive and to indicate to prospective Bidders articles that shall be satisfactory. Bid Proposals for other manufacturer names, brand names, trade names, catalog numbers or references shall be considered, provided each Bidder states on the face of the Bid Proposal what alternate, but equivalent items are being proposed.

If the Bidder proposes alternate, but equivalent, items, the Bidder must provide the following: (i) product identification, including manufacturer's name and address; (ii) manufacturer's literature identifying the product description, reference standards and performance and test data; (iii) samples, as applicable; and (iv) itemized comparisons of the proposed alternate items listing significant variations. If a Bidder proposes alternate items, it warrants and represents that in making a formal request for substitution that: (i) the proposed alternate item is equivalent to or superior in all respects to the item specified in the Bid; and (ii) that the same warranties and guarantees will be provided for the proposed alternate items as those specified in the Bid. The CPO may, in his or her sole discretion accept an alternate item for a specified item, provided the alternate items so bid is, in the CPO's sole opinion the equivalent of the item specified in the Bid. An alternate item that the CPO determines not to be equivalent to the specified item shall render the bid non-responsive and the CPO shall reject the Bid.

IB-18 SAMPLES

Bidders may be asked upon request of the Chief Procurement Officer, including subsequent to the Bid Opening, to furnish and deliver a representative sample sufficient to effectively evaluate each item listed in the Bid Proposal. All samples must be delivered F.O.B. DESTINATION, FREIGHT PREPAID to an identified delivery location within five (5) business days of the request. Samples submitted must be identical to those specified in the Bid Proposal. Submission of other than the samples reflected in the Bid Proposal or failure to furnish samples within the required time period shall be cause for rejection of the Bid Proposal. All samples are subject to mutilation and will not be returned. Bidders shall bear the cost of any samples and shipping or delivery costs related thereto.

IB-19 NOTICES

All communications and notices between the County and Bidders regarding the Bid Documents shall be in writing and hand delivered or delivered via first class United States mail, postage prepaid, or via e-mail. Notices to the Bidders shall be addressed to the name and address provided by the Bidders; notices to the Chief Procurement Officer shall be addressed to Room 1018, County Building, 118 North Clark Street, Chicago, Illinois 60602.

IB-20 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS - PUBLIC CONTRACTS

This is a competitive Bid of Cook County government subject to laws and ordinances governing public bids and contracts. The Bidder shall at all times observe and comply with all laws, ordinances, regulations and codes of the Federal, State, County and other local government agencies which may in any manner effect the preparation of the Bid Proposal or the performance of the Contract. If the Bidder observes that any of the Bid Documents are at variance with any laws, ordinances, regulations or codes, it shall promptly notify the Chief Procurement Officer in writing and if necessary an addendum shall be issued by the Chief Procurement Officer.

IB-21 COOK COUNTY RECYCLED PRODUCT PROCUREMENT POLICY

Cook County has adopted the Cook County Recycled Product Procurement Policy. In accordance with the Policy, Cook County encourages the use of recycled paper and paper products, whenever practicable. The Bidder shall use recycled paper, except where the specialized nature of certain materials (such as photographs) requires otherwise, and all documents shall be printed two-sided unless two-sided printing is not practicable.

IB-22 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

Unless expressly stated in the Specifications, Special Conditions, or Proposal page(s) any quantities stated in this Bid represent estimated usage and as such are for bid canvassing purposes only. The County reserves the right to increase or decrease quantities ordered. Nothing herein will be construed as an intent or obligation on the part of the County to purchase any goods, equipment, supplies or services beyond those determined by the County to be necessary to meet its needs.

END OF SECTION

GENERAL CONDITIONS BID CONTRACTS INDEX

<u>Section</u>	Subject	<u>Page</u>
GC-01	Subcontracting or Assignment of Contract or Contract Funds	10
GC-02	Indemnification	10
GC-03	Inspection and Responsibility	10
GC-04	Payment to Contractors and Subcontractors	11
GC-05	Insurance	11
GC-06	Disputes	11
GC-07	Default	11
GC-08	County's Remedies	12
GC-09	Patents, Copyrights and Licenses	12
GC-10	Compliance with Laws	12
GC-11	Delivery	12
GC-12	Material Data Safety Sheet	12
GC-13	Termination for Convenience	12
GC-14	Guarantees and Warranties	12
GC-15	Confidentiality and Ownership of Documents	13
GC-16	Audit; Examination of Records	13
GC-17	Governing Law	13
GC-18	Cooperation with Inspector General	13
GC-19	M/WBE Commitment	13

GC-01 SUBCONTRACTING OR ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT OR CONTRACT FUNDS

Once awarded, this Contract shall not be subcontracted or any part thereof assigned without the express written approval of the County Chief Procurement Officer ("Chief Procurement Officer"). In no case, however, shall such approval relieve the Contractor from his obligations or change the terms of the Contract. The Contractor shall not transfer or assign any Contract funds or claims due or to become due without the advance written approval of the Chief Procurement Officer. The unauthorized subcontracting or assignment of the Contract, in whole or in part, or the unauthorized transfer or assignment of any Contract funds, either in whole or in part, or any interest therein, which shall be due or are to become due the Contractor shall have no effect on the County and are null and void.

The Contractor shall identify any and all contractors and subcontractors it intends to use in the performance of the Contract by completing the Identification of Subcontractor/Supplier/Subconsultant Form ("ISF"). All such persons shall be subject to the prior approval of the County. The Contractor will only subcontract with competent and responsible Subcontractors. The Chief Procurement Officer may require in his or her sole discretion, that the Contractor provide copies of all contracts with subcontractors.

The Contractor and its employees, contractors, subcontractors, agents and representatives are, for all purposes arising out of this Contract, independent contractors and are not employees of the County. It is expressly understood and agreed that the Contractor and its employees, contractors, subcontractors, agents and representatives shall in no event as a result of a contract be entitled to any benefit to which County employees are entitled, including, but not limited to, overtime, retirement benefits, worker's compensation benefits and injury leave or other leave benefits.

GC-02 INDEMNIFICATION

The Contractor covenants and agrees to indemnify and save harmless the County and its commissioners, officials, employees, agents and representatives, and their respective heirs, successors and assigns, from and against any and all costs, expenses, attorney's fees, losses, damages and liabilities incurred or suffered directly or indirectly from or attributable to any claims arising out of or incident to the performance or nonperformance of the Contract by the Contractor, or the acts or omissions of the officers, agents, employees, contractors, subcontractors, licensees or invitees of the Contractor. The Contractor expressly understands and agrees that any Performance Bond or insurance protection required of the Contractor, or otherwise provided by the Contractor, shall in no way limit the responsibility to indemnify the County as hereinabove provided.

GC-03 INSPECTION AND RESPONSIBILITY

The County shall have a right to inspect and approve any Contract goods, equipment, supplies or services used in carrying out this Contract and shall approve the quality and standards of all materials or completed work furnished under this Contract. Contract goods, equipment, supplies or services not complying herewith may be rejected by the Chief Procurement Officer and/or the Using Agency and shall be replaced and/or re-performed by the Contractor at no cost to the County. Any Contract goods, equipment or supplies rejected shall be removed within a reasonable time from the premises of the County at the entire expense of the Contractor, after notice has been given by the County to the Contractor that such Contract goods, equipment or supplies have been rejected.

GC-04 PAYMENT TO CONTRACTORS

All invoices submitted by the Contractor shall be in accordance with the cost provisions contained in the Contract Documents and shall contain a detailed description of the Deliverables (i.e., the goods, equipment, supplies or services) including the quantity of the Deliverables, for which payment is requested. All invoices for services shall include itemized entries indicating the date or time period in which the services were provided, the amount of time spent performing the services, and a detailed description of the services provided during the period of the invoice. All Contracts for services that are procured as Sole Source must also contain a provision requiring the Contractor to submit itemized records indicating the dates that services were provided, a detailed description of the work performed on each such date, and the amount of time spent performing work on each such date. All invoices shall reflect the amounts invoiced by and the amounts paid to the Contractor as of the date of the invoice. Invoices for new charges shall not include "past due" amounts, if any, which amounts must be set forth on a separate invoice. Contractor shall not be entitled to invoice the County for any late fees or other penalties.

In accordance with Section 34-177 of the Cook County Procurement Code, the County shall have a right to set off and subtract from any invoice(s) or Contract price, a sum equal to any fines and penalties, including interest, for any tax or fee delinquency and any debt or obligation owed by the Contractor to the County.

The Contractor acknowledges its duty to ensure the accuracy of all invoices submitted to the County for payment. By submitting the invoices, the Contractor certifies that all itemized entries set forth in the invoices are true and correct. The Contractor acknowledges that by submitting the invoices, it certifies that it has delivered the Deliverables, i.e., the goods, supplies or equipment set forth in the Contract to the Using Agency, or that it has properly performed the services set forth in the Contract. The invoice must also reflect the dates and amount of time expended in the provision of services under the Contract. The Contractor acknowledges that any inaccurate statements or negligent or intentional misrepresentations in the invoices shall result in the County exercising all remedies available to it in law and equity including, but not limited to, a delay in payment or non-payment to the Contractor, and reporting the matter to the Cook County Office of the Independent Inspector General.

GC-05 INSURANCE

Contractor shall purchase and maintain during the term of this Contract insurance coverage which will satisfactorily insure Contractor and the County against claims and liabilities which could arise because of performance of the Contract.

GC-06 DISPUTES

Any dispute arising under the Contract between the County and Contractor shall be decided by the Chief Procurement Officer. The complaining party shall submit a written statement detailing the dispute and specifying the specific relevant Contract provision(s) to the Chief Procurement Officer. Upon request of the Chief Procurement Officer, the party complained against shall respond to the complaint in writing within five days of such request. The Chief Procurement Officer will reduce his/her decision to writing and mail or otherwise furnish a copy thereof to the Contractor and Using Agency. Dispute resolution as provided herein shall be a condition precedent to any other action at law or in equity. Notwithstanding a dispute, Contractor shall continue to discharge all its obligations, duties and responsibilities set forth in the Contract during any dispute resolution proceeding unless otherwise agreed to by the County in writing.

GC-07 DEFAULT

Contractor shall be in default hereunder in the event of a material breach by Contractor of any term or condition of this Contract where Contractor has failed to cure such breach within ten (10) days after written notice of breach is given to Contractor by the County, setting forth the nature of such breach.

A material breach of the contract by the Contractor includes but is not limited to the following:

- 1. Failure to begin performance under the Contract within the specified time;
- 2. Failure to perform under the Contract with sufficient personnel, equipment, or materials to ensure completion of said performance within the specified time or failure to assign qualified personnel to ensure completion within the specified time;
- 3. Performance of the Contract in an unsatisfactory manner;
- 4. Refusal to perform services deemed to be defective or unsuitable;
- 5. Discontinuance of performance of Contractor's obligations under the Contract or the impairment or the reasonable progress of performance;
- 6. Becoming insolvent, being declared bankrupt or committing any act of bankruptcy or insolvency;
- 7. Any assignment of the Contract for the benefit of creditors;
- 8. Any cause whatsoever which impairs performance in an acceptable manner; or
- Any other material breach of any term or condition of the Contract.
 County shall be in default hereunder if any material breach of the Contract by the County occurs which is not cured by the County within forty-five (45) days after written notice of breach has been given by Contractor to the County, setting forth the nature of such breach.

GC-08 COUNTY'S REMEDIES

If the Contractor fails to remedy a material breach during the ten (10) day cure period pursuant to General Condition GC-05, Default, the County shall have the right to terminate the Contract provided, however, that the County shall give Contractor prior written notice of its intent to terminate. Following notice of breach to Contractor, the County reserves the right to withhold payments owed to Contractor until such time as Contractor has cured the breach which is the subject matter of the notice. In addition, the County shall have the right to pursue all remedies in law or equity.

GC-09 PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES

Contractor agrees to hold harmless and indemnify the County, its officials, agents, employees and affiliates from and defend, as permitted by Illinois law, at its own expense (including reasonable attorneys', accountants' and consultants' fees), any suit or proceeding brought against the County based upon a claim that the ownership and/or use of equipment, hardware and software or any part thereof utilized in performing Contractor's services constitutes an infringement of any patent, copyright or license or any other intellectual property right. In the event the use of any equipment, hardware or software or any part thereof is enjoined, Contractor with all reasonable speed and due diligence shall provide or otherwise secure for County, at the Contractor's election, one of the following: the right to continue use of the equipment, hardware or software; an equivalent system having the Specifications as provided in this Contract; or to modify the system or its component parts so that it becomes non-infringing while performing in a substantially similar manner to the original system, meeting the Specifications of this Contract.

GC-10 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The Contractor shall observe and comply with the laws, ordinances, regulations and codes of the Federal, State, County and other local government agencies which may in any manner affect the performance of the Contract, including but not limited to those County Ordinances set forth in the Certifications, Affidavits or EDS attached hereto and incorporated herein. Assurance of compliance with this requirement by the Contractor's employees, agents or subcontractors shall be the responsibility of the Contractor. The Contractor shall secure and pay for all federal, state and local licenses, permits and fees required in order to perform this Contract.

GC-11 DELIVERY

All Contract goods, equipment or supplies shipped to the County shall be shipped F.O.B., DESTINATION, FREIGHT PREPAID. Arrangements shall be made in advance by the Contractor in order that the County may arrange for receipt of the materials. The County reserves the right to add new delivery locations or delete previously listed delivery locations as required during the Contract period. The only restriction regarding the County's right to add new delivery locations shall be that any new or additional location shall be within the geographical boundaries of the County of Cook.

GC-12 MATERIAL DATA SAFETY SHEET

Where required under the Illinois "Toxic Substance Disclosure to Employees Act", Illinois Compiled Statutes, 820 ILCS 255/1, Contractor shall submit with each delivery of Contract goods, equipment or supplies a Material Safety Data Sheet.

GC-13 TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE

The County may terminate this Contract, or any portion, at any time by notice in writing from the County to the Contractor. Unless otherwise stated in the notice, the effective date of such termination shall be three business days after the date the notice of termination is mailed by the County. If the County elects to terminate the Contract in full, unless otherwise specified in the notice of termination, the Contractor shall immediately cease performance and shall promptly tender to the County all work products, reviews, recommendations, reports, documents and analyses, whether completed or in process. If the County elects to terminate the Contract in part, unless otherwise specified in the notice of partial termination, the Contractor shall immediately cease performance of those portions of the Contract which are terminated and shall promptly tender to the County all work products, reviews, recommendations, reports, documents and analyses relating to said portions of the Contract, whether completed or in process. Contractor shall refrain from incurring any further costs with respect to portions of the Contract which are terminated except as specifically approved by the Chief Procurement Officer. The Contractor shall not invoice the County for any goods, equipment, supplies or services provided after the effective date of termination.

GC-14 GUARANTEES AND WARRANTIES

Unless otherwise stated herein, all guarantees and warranties required shall be furnished by the Contractor and shall be delivered to the Department before final payment on the Contract is issued. The Contractor agrees that the Contract goods, equipment, supplies or services to be furnished shall be covered by the most favorable commercial warranties the Contractor gives to any customer for the same or substantially similar Contract goods, equipment, supplies or services and that the rights and remedies so provided are in addition to and do not limit any rights afforded to County.

GC-15 CONFIDENTIALITY AND OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS

Contractor acknowledges and agrees that information regarding this Contract is confidential and shall not be disclosed, directly, indirectly or by implication, or be used by Contractor in any way, whether during the term of this Contract or at any time thereafter, except solely as required in the course of Contractor's performance of the Contract. Contractor shall comply with the applicable privacy laws and regulations affecting the County and will not disclose any of County's records, materials, or other data to any third party. Contractor shall not have the right to compile and distribute statistical analyses and reports utilizing data derived from information or data obtained from County without the prior written approval of County. In the event such approval is given, any such reports published and distributed by Contractor shall be furnished to County without charge.

All documents, data, studies, reports, work product or product created as a result of the performance of this Contract shall be the property of the County of Cook. It shall be a breach of this Contract for the Contractor to reproduce or use, any documents, data, studies, report, work product or product obtained from the County of Cook or created hereby for its own purposes or to be copied and used by any third party. During the performance of the services herein provided for, the Contractor shall be responsible of any loss or damage to the County's documents while they are in the Contractor's possession, and any such document lost or damaged shall be restored at the expense of the Contractor.

GC-16 AUDIT; EXAMINATION OF RECORDS

The Contractor agrees that the Cook County Auditor or any of its duly authorized representatives shall, until expiration of three (3) years after the final payment under the Contract, have access and the right to examine any books, documents, papers, canceled checks, bank statements, purveyor's and other invoices, and records of the Contractor related to the Contract, or to Contractor's compliance with any term, condition or provision thereof. The Contractor shall be responsible for establishing and maintaining records sufficient to document the costs associated with performance under the terms of this Contract.

The Contractor further agrees that it shall include in all of its subcontracts hereunder a provision to the effect that the subcontractor agrees that the Cook County Auditor or any of its duly authorized representatives shall, until expiration of three (3) years after final payment under the subcontract, have access and the right to examine any books, documents, papers, canceled checks, bank statements, purveyor's and other invoices and records of such subcontractor involving transactions relating to the subcontract, or to such subcontractor's compliance with any term, condition or provision thereunder or under the Contract.

In the event the Contractor receives payment under the Contract, reimbursement for which is later disallowed by the County, the Contractor shall promptly refund the disallowed amount to the County on request, or at the County's option, the County may credit the amount disallowed from the next payment due or to become due to the Contractor under any contract with the County.

GC-17 GOVERNING LAW

This Contract shall be governed by and construed under the laws of the State of Illinois. The Contractor irrevocably agrees that, subject to the County's sole and absolute election, any action or proceeding in any way, manner or respect arising out of the Contract, or arising from any dispute or controversy in connection with or related to the Contract, shall be litigated only in courts within the Circuit Court of Cook County, State of Illinois, and the Contractor consents and submits to the jurisdiction thereof. In accordance with these provisions, Contractor waives any right it may have to transfer or change the venue of any litigation brought against it by the County pursuant to this Contract.

GC-18 COOPERATION WITH INSPECTOR GENERAL

Contractors, subcontractors, licensees, grantees or persons or businesses who have a County contract, grant, license, or certification of eligibility for County contracts shall abide by all of the applicable provisions of the Office of the Independent Inspector General Ordinance (Section 2-281 et. seq. of the Cook County Code of Ordinances). Failure to cooperate as required may result in monetary and/or other penalties.

GC-19 MINORITY AND WOMEN OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES COMMITMENT

In the performance of this Contract, including the procurement and lease of materials or equipment, Contractor must abide by the minority and women's business enterprise commitment requirements of the Cook County Ordinance for all contracts which have an amount of \$25,000 or more, (Article IV, Section 34-267 through 272) except to the extent waived by the Compliance Director.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS

SC-01 SCOPE

The Bidder shall furnish «reference:IM_MASTER:cc_lead_department:c»,, all in accordance with the Contract Documents, Specifications and Proposal herein.

SC-02 CONTRACT PERIOD

This is a requirement type contract for «prompt:Contract Effective Period (Months» with xx (x) one year renewal options effective after award by the Chief Procurement Officer and after proper execution of the Contract Documents. The contract will consist of a firm price for initial term of this agreement.

SC-03 AWARD OF CONTRACT

The Contract shall be awarded to the lowest responsible and responsive Bidder whose bid meets the requirements and criteria set forth in the Bid Documents. All items, unless otherwise stated, will be assumed to meet all specifications and requirements as set forth in the Bid Documents. Ambiguous bids which are uncertain as to terms, delivery, quantity, or compliance with specifications may be declared non-responsive and rejected. The County shall be sole determinant of the relevant and appropriate cost factors used in evaluating any Base, Options and/or Alternate bids. Bidders must quote all lines for consideration. It is the intent of the County to award this bid in whole and not in part. Only one award will result from this bid.

This Contract identifies specific items to be supplied. However, the Vendor agrees that the County may, in its sole discretion may request that the Vendor provide additional items which are not specified in the Contract, up to 10% of the original Contract value. If the County requests that the Vendor provide additional items not currently specified in the Contract, the County reserves the right to negotiate costs savings or other concessions as a result of the increased quantities. When additional items are required, the successful Vendor shall submit a price quote for the new items for the County's consideration. New items, as approved by the Chief Procurement Officer, must be added to the Contract through a fully-executed Contract Amendment as specified in <a href="mailto:«reference:IM_MASTER:document_number:cc_p».

SC-04 SERVICE LOCATION

All services shall be performed at:
«prompt:Service Location:Street Address, »

SC-05 PRE-BID CONFERENCE/SITE INSPECTION

The County will hold a Pre-Bid Conference and Site Inspection at the wrompt:Pre-Bid Location:Street Address, ». Representatives from the Procurement Department and the wreference:IM_MASTER:cc_lead_department:c will comprise the panel to respond to answer any questions regarding the Specifications and Invitation to Bid procedures. It is not mandatory that the bidders attend this Pre-Bid Conference/Site Inspection, however it is highly recommended. Prospective Proposers must respond to to wreference:IM_MASTER:cc_buyer_name:cc_buy at wrompt:Specification Engineer (Buyer) Ph» or e-mail wrompt:Specification Engineer (Buyer) E-» on or before wdate:Pre-Bid Conference Confirmation Res, with firm's name and number of attendees. A maximum of two (2) representatives from each firm may attend the Pre-Bid Conference.

DATE: «date:Pre-Bid Conference Date»

TIME: «prompt:Pre-Bid Conference Time:#### am o»

PLACE: «prompt:Pre-Bid Location:Street Address, »

SPECIAL CONDITIONS

SC-06 INQUIRIES

A copy of any written request for interpretation of documents shall be provided to the Office of the Chief Procurement Officer at the address set forth below.

Inquiries about the interpretation of the Specifications must be made only in writing and shall be directed to the Chief Procurement Officer. Inquiries will be answered in writing, if deemed necessary, by means of an Addendum issued by the Office of the Chief Procurement Officer. (Reference Instructions to Bidders, Section IB-03 "Exceptions and Addendum", Page IB-3). Inquiries must be received no later than 5:00 p.m. on «date:Bidder Inquiry Deadline Date:A copy». Inquiries will be answered by the close of business on «date:Bidder Inquiry Response Date:» «help:Bidder Inquiry Response Date:» «help:Bidder Inquiry Response Date:Bidder».

During the bid process, all inquiries must be directed, in writing, only to the Office of the Cook County Chief Procurement Officer as follows:

Shannon E. Andrews
Cook County Chief Procurement Officer
c/o «Reference:IM_MASTER:Cc_Buyer_Name:Cc_Buy», Specifications Engineer or Contract Negotiator
118 N. Clark Street, Room 1018
Chicago, IL 60602

Contact Info for Specifications Engineer:

«reference:IM_MASTER:cc_buyer_name:cc_buy»: «prompt:Specification Engineer (Buyer) Ph»,
«prompt:Specification Engineer (Buyer) E-»

SC-07 NOTIFICATION

Do not begin performance on the Contract until notified by the Using Agency.

CONTRACT NO. «reference:IM_MASTER:document_number:cc_p» <u>SPECIFICATIONS</u>

COPY AND PASTE SPECIFICATIONS HERE (Arial Font, Size 9)

SITE INSPECTION CERTIFICATE

(IF APPLICABLE)

This is to verify that Bidder has, this date, participated in the Mandatory Site Inspection as required in this Bid. Bidder has inspected the site and related Bid Documents and fully familiarized itself with all conditions and matters which might in any way affect the Deliverables, including costs and scheduling.

·	
	NAME (PRINTED/TYPED AND SIGNATURE)
	COMPANY
	OFFICIAL CAPACITY
	TELEPHONE NUMBER (Area Code)
NOTE: This form must be filled in completely and re	eturned with Bid Proposal.
INSPECTION CONFIRMED BY:	
DATE:	

PROPOSAL

	BIDDER:
The Bidder declares that it has carefully examined the Pro Specifications identified as Contract Document Number winsert:Commodity» for winsert:Using Department, as prothemselves with all of the conditions under which it must be they waive all rights to plead any misunderstanding regard	reference:IM_MASTER:document_number:cc_p» for epared by Cook County, and that they have familiarized be carried out and understand that in making this Proposal
In the event that there is a mathematical error between th prevail. Provide unit prices for this bid on Attachment A a spreadsheet should be completed and submitted as a partire with the bid. Failure to submit the spreadsheet may	ttached to this PDF as a fillable Excel Spreadsheet. This per copy and electronically on a universal serial bus flash
All shipping and delivery charges for inside delivery must be included in the Unit Price. Items will be ordered in various quantities on an "As Needed" basis.	
ENTER GRAND TOTAL FRO	M SPREADSHEET: \$
DELIVERY DATE:(NUMBER OF CALE	NDAR DAYS AFTER AWARD OF CONTRACT)
The receipt of the following addenda to the Specifications	is acknowledged:
Addendum No.	Date:
Addendum No.	Date:
Addendum No.	Date:
SIGNATURE	Date:

EXHIBIT I

OFFICE OF THE COOK COUNTY COMPTROLLER ELECTRONIC PAYABLES PROGRAM ("E-PAYABLES")

FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES ONLY

<u>This document describes the Office of the Cook County Comptroller's Electronic Payables Program ("E-Payables").</u>

If you wish to participate in E-Payables, please contact the Cook County Comptroller's Office, Accounts Payable, 118 N. Clark Street, Room 500, Chicago, IL 60602.

DESCRIPTION

To increase payment efficiency and timeliness, we have introduced E-Payables program, a new payment initiative to our accounts payable model. This new initiative utilizes a Visa purchasing card and operates through the Visa payment network. This is County's preferred method of payment and your participation in our Visa purchasing card program will provide mutual benefits both to your organization and ours.

As a vendor, you may experience the following benefits by accepting this new payment type:

- Improved cash flow and accelerated payment
- Reduced paperwork and a more streamlined accounts receivable process
- Elimination of stop payment issues
- Reduced payment delays
- Reduced costs for handling paper checks
- Payments settled directly to your merchant account

There are two options within this initiative:

1. Dedicated Credit Card – "PULL" Settlement

For this option, you will have an assigned dedicated credit card to be used for each payment. You will provide a point of contact within your organization who will keep credit card information on file. Each time a payment is made, you will receive a remittance advice via email detailing the invoices being paid. Each time you receive a remittance advice, you will process payments in the same manner you process credit card transactions today.

2. One-Time Use Credit Card – "SUGA" Settlement

For this option, you will provide a point of contact within your organization who will receive an email notification authorizing you to process payments in the same manner you process credit card transactions today. Each time payment is made, you will receive a remittance advice, via email, detailing the invoices being paid. Also, each time you receive a remittance advice, you will receive a new, unique credit card number. This option is ideal for suppliers who are unable to keep credit card account information on file.

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

CONTRACT EXECUTION PAGE

Original Contract Term & Amount

Contract #	
Original Contract Term	Renewal Options (If Applicable)
Contract Amount	<u> </u>
ON BEHALF OF THE COUNTY OF COOK, A BODY POL HEREBY EXECUTED BY:	ITIC AND CORPORATE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, THIS CONTRACT IS
	<u> </u>

Date

Cook County Chief Procurement Officer

COUNTY OF COOK BID LABEL

BIDDER'S NAME & ADDRESS:
NAME:
ADDRESS:
CONTACT PERSON:
PHONE #:
EMAIL:
(THIS INFORMATION IS REQUIRED)

BID INFORMATION		
BID #:		
FOR:		
AGENCY:		
BID OPENING DATE:	AT 10:00 A.M	
PROCUREMENT CONTACT:		

NOTICE TO BIDDERS:

- MAINTAIN ORDER OF BID DOCUMENT
- BID IS TO BE EXECUTED IN TRIPLICATE.
- COMPLETE THIS PAGE, PRINT AND ATTACH TO FRONT OF PACKAGE/ENVELOPE WHEN SUBMITTED

SUBMIT BID TO:

Office of the Chief Procurement Officer County Building 118 N. Clark Street, Room 1018 Chicago, IL 60602